
 
 

  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
4th CDBG CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

February 21, 2014, 9:30 AM – 12:00 PM 
Third Floor Conference Room, Lewiston City Building 

FINAL MINUTES 
 

Roll Call:  The meeting was started at 9:30 a.m. 
 
Members Present:  Andy Choate, Nathan Libby, Pauline Gudas, Heidi Brooks, Walter Hill, 
Richard White and Sue Charron 
 
Staff Present:  Lincoln Jeffers, Jayne Jochem, Ingrid Nivison and Cathy Lekberg 
 
1) CDBG Orientation – Review of Scoring 
 

Lincoln passed out a copy of the scoring information that he has received to date and 
noted that there was quite a spread in the numbers (45 – 98) and that normally there 
would only be a 20 – 30 point spread.   
 
Nathan showed the members a copy of the Scoring Criteria form that was in their binders 
and provided a brief refresher on how to score the agencies describing how to use this 
form as guidance for scoring.  Jayne stated that there were certain costs eligible for 
CDBG funding; which are: salaries, benefits, materials, supplies, utilities and rent.  
Ineligible costs included travel, equipment and indirect costs. 

 
2) Review and approval of February 7, 2014 meeting minutes. 

 
The following motion was made: 
MOTION: by Nathan Libby to accept the February 7, 2014 CDBG Citizen Advisory 

Committee Minutes as presented.  Seconded by Pauline Gudas. 
 VOTED: 5-0 (Passed)  
 
 Richard White arrived at the meeting at 9:40 a.m. 
 
3) Pilot Program Interviews  

 
Walter Hill arrived at the meeting at 10:05 a.m. 
 
Central Maine Health Corp. – Healthy Androscoggin - PILOT Green and Healthy 
Homes Initiative (GHHI) – Comprehensive health assessment in apartments with 
Shanna Rogers, Steve Johndro, Dana Leeper and Osmo Doz presenting: 
 
This new pilot program’s strategy is to align, by using a single application to access 
multiple programs and coordinate eligibility;  braid, by pooling funding from a variety of 
sources; and coordinate, by keeping it simple for the customer.  People applying under 
the GHHI will have one whole interaction and application instead of many different 
agencies and applications.  The funding for this program will support a full time Healthy 



4th CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes for February 21, 2014 Page 2 of 5 
 
 
 

Homes Resident Educator for residents involved in Lewiston-Auburn GHHI’s one year 
pilot project.  The proposal is to fund the Healthy Homes Resident Educator to conduct 
an environmental and energy assessment of 10 apartment units in the downtown taking 
into consideration the needs of the family and the owner. Once assessed, housing 
funding from the City’s rehab program, lead program, CCI’s weatherization programs; 
and funding from other programs will be pooled to rehabilitate the property.  After the 
rehabilitation, the Healthy Homes Resident Educator will work with the families on health 
and safety issues such as how to keep the property clean and free from lead dust, how to 
take care of food and food storage to keep the housing free from pests, etc. The Healthy 
Homes Resident Educator will coordinate pre and post client health surveys, develop 
recommended action plans for residents and coordinate referrals and follow-up for 
families.  In addition to funding the Healthy Homes Resident Educator, the CDBG funding 
will be utilized to support the training of 20 Lewiston residents as Community Health 
Outreach Workers.  The training will include health and safety, weatherization, lead safe 
renovation, and repair and painting program certification.   
 
Nathan asked who the primary beneficiaries were, and Shanna said they seek to serve 
low-mod homeowners and tenants.   Dana said they would like to teach people about 
lead and how it impacts children.  She said that the GHHI planned to apply for the Lead 
Hazard Control Grant and this program if funded could be utilized as match for the lead 
grant.  Rick asked if they would assist the landlords with the renovations and Shanna 
said that they do not just identify the problems, but reach out to them with the tools and 
resources to renovate their buildings.  Through GHHI, landlords will be provided with low 
interest or 0% loans to assist in the renovations.  Pauline asked what the $2,600 for 
consultant and contractors was for and Dana said it pays for training the contractors in 
the Renovation, Repair and Paint (RRP) to renovate or rehabilitate the properties.  
Pauline asked if they received funding from Auburn and Dana said they did not this year.  
She said that the educator would be hired for the Lewiston area only.  Andy asked what 
would happen if they did not get the CDBG funds and Steve said they would be applying 
to other resources and they will not stop until they are successful.  Andy asked if they 
would hire a part-time person and Steve said yes.  He said that the work is already being 
done and this funding would expand it adding more significant time.  Andy asked what 
type of outreach they were doing to reach the two and three unit buildings where 
landlords considered themselves homeowners and Shanna said they work through 
existing relationships with landlords but if we offer this pilot program, tenants could take it 
to the landlords also.  She also said they could work with the City tax office to target 
those homeowners.  Walter asked what the low-mod income threshold was and Shanna 
said a family of four 50% is considered very low income at $27,400 and 80% is 
considered low/moderate income at $43,850.  Andy asked if they have reached out to the 
adult education or vocational schools and Shanna said they have worked with adult 
education but thought it was a good idea to form a partnership with the vocational school 
in training young adults in welding and plumbing fields. 

 
Community Concepts, Inc. - PILOT – Bridges out of Poverty - Seeking housing stability 
for 5 households that receive general assistance as a way to move out of poverty – Joan 
Churchill presenting: 



4th CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes for February 21, 2014 Page 3 of 5 
 
 
 

 
This new pilot program seeks to plan and test some of the “Bridges Out of Poverty” 
strategies and provide training for a minimum of five Lewiston households receiving 
General Assistance from the City.  This program helps to increase housing stability and 
help families move from poverty by providing the tools needed to rethink their situation. 
Families in poverty often react to a negative situation and often think in crises mode,  
which,  perpetuates the cycle of poverty.  This program would mentor or support families 
and provide the tools needed to evaluate and plan for the future. Participants in the 
program would attend a 16 week, 2 ½ hour session and would be provided with at least 
12 resources to create a personal plan. The curriculum includes a thorough self-
evaluation for each participant. 
 
Nathan asked about statistics from the Bangor model, and Joan said she did not have 
that information but would look into getting it.  Rick said that he attended courses similar 
to this and walked out disgusted.  He asked what was so different with this course and 
Joan explained that it is a more comprehensive training than other programs and offers 
12 resources for participants to work on.  Heidi asked if the participants receive their own 
books to keep in case they cannot make every session, and Joan said yes.  Pauline said 
this was a good idea and a viable program.  Joan said they would start by accepting 
people willing to participate first.  Lincoln asked how long the model has been out and 
Joan said about eight years. 
 

4) City Budgets & Programs: 
 
Consolidated Plan 2015-2020: 
 
Jayne passed out the Citizen’s Participation Plan (CPP) and the Consolidated Plan 
Schedule.  She told the Committee that they would be able to play a significant role in 
creating the 5-Year Consolidated Plan.  She said that Lewiston and Auburn would be 
jointly hiring a consultant to create each of their plans and these plans would be due to 
HUD by May 15, 2015.  After the consultant has completed their various meetings, the 
CAC members would be given that information for their review and they would be setting 
priorities for identifying pieces that are critical to the Plan.  She explained that this was a 
very intense process and encouraged all members take part.  They are asking for 
$13,500 of CDBG funds and $7,000 from HOME funds for the hiring of the consultant for 
the Lewiston Consolidated Plan. 
 
Fair Housing: 
 
Jayne explained that a consultant was hired to compile data for the Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing. One of the activities initiated this year is a poster drawing 
competition in the two middle schools with the fair housing theme of “Will you be my 
neighbor?”. The winners would be announced in April at a joint council meeting when the 
two mayors will be asked to proclaim April as Fair Housing month. Additionally, the 
funding will be utilized to support tenant and landlord education rights and responsibilities 
including the rights of renters with disabilities, and the rights of landlords under the 



4th CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes for February 21, 2014 Page 4 of 5 
 
 
 

reasonable accommodation of disabilities and ADA compliance and to initiate a new 
Sharia compliant lending program for Islamic citizens.  The Cities are working in 
partnership with Community Concepts lending corporation CCFC to assist us and provide 
a service for new Americans to own a home. Our request to fund this program is $5,000. 
 
Lead Hazard Control Program: 
 
Jayne explained that they applied for the 2013 Lead Hazard Control Grant but were not 
successful.  The City had set aside $37,500 to be used as match but those funds have  
not been spent. The ECCD had received a request to utilize approximately $7,500 of the 
lead money to fund the notification process of the Neighborhood Housing League (NHL).  
This has been a joint venture for each demolition to notify residents within in a 300’ area 
of a demolition that will occur in their neighborhood and educate residents about the 
hazards of lead dust on their families.  The NHL funding for this program will end in 
March 2014.  City staff are interested in continuing this important program and want to 
spend $7,500 of lead funding for ten demolitions at $750.00 each.  This means however, 
that the funding for the lead match will be reduced and will need to be replaced in next 
year’s allocation.   
 
The City of Lewiston will be the lead applicant with Auburn as a sub recipient for the Lead 
Hazard Control Grant we are applying for this year.  Our request for this grant will be $2.5 
million.  The City with its partners have hired a professional grant writer from the National 
Coalition to End Childhood Lead Poisoning (aka GHHI National) to write its proposal this 
year.  The City of Lewiston, Auburn and Community Concepts, Inc are providing  
$2,000/each and Healthy Androscoggin is providing $12,500 to fund this professional 
grant writing team to improve our chances of being successful in competing for the lead 
grant.   
 
With this in mind, we are requesting the following allocation of CDBG funds for the next 
three years for removing lead from housing units: 
 
 

2015 1st Year $55,000 (plus the unallocated $30,000) - 34 units @ $2,500 for lead  
hazard control 

  2016  2nd Year $85,000 - 33 units @ $2,500 for lead hazard control 
2017  3rd Year  $85,000 - 33 units @ $2,500 for lead hazard control 

 
Acquisition/Demolition – Because of Committee’s time restraints, this item was not 
discussed at this time. 
 
Possible reallocation of housing entitlement funding from 2013 to Commercial: 
 
Lincoln explained they have a business development opportunity that he cannot speak to 
as it is still in confidential stages.  It will be going to City Council in executive session at 
the next meeting.  It is a good opportunity for new business and job creation.  He 
requested that $100,000 be reallocated from the Rental Housing Rehabilitation Program 



4th CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes for February 21, 2014 Page 5 of 5 
 
 
 

to the Commercial Program to allow them to grant this new developer funds to relocate 
and establish their office in Lewiston.   
 
Rick asked how many jobs it would create, and Lincoln said the first year there would be 
two jobs and eight subcontractor jobs, but by 2016 there would be 30 new jobs and 56 
subcontractor jobs.  Lincoln also mentioned to the Committee that this was not a grant, 
but a loan which will be paid back in full. Additionally, the City will request $100,000 to be 
reallocated next year to fund the Rental Housing Rehabilitation Program (RHRP).  It 
should be noted that there is approximately $80,000 in program income to carry the 
RHRP through until July 1st when the new funding would recapitalize the residential 
program. 
 

5) Status of Loan Programs – Jayne said she has four new loans amounting to $30,000 
that are in progress right now. 

 
6) Any other business members may have relating to the duties of the  
 CDBG Committee - None 
 

Rick mentioned that he spoke with Joel at the Root Cellar and that the only religious 
aspects is to “love thy neighbor” and they open the door to everyone.  He said this would 
fit the need for a community center and would like staff to schedule a meeting with Joel to 
discuss.  Jayne said if this is eligible, it could be reported in the CAPER and the  
Consolidated Plan goal could be completed.  Rick will let Joel know that Jayne will set up 
a meeting with the Root Cellar to discuss this. 

 
Heidi mentioned that there will be an Advocates for Children pot luck luncheon being held 
on Saturday, March 1st at 1:00 p.m. at Bates College and she would email the flyer to  
Cathy to send to the Committee. 

 
Andy reminded the Committee that scoring for the non-interviewed and interviewed 
agencies would be due on Monday, February 24th. 

 
 Nate left the meeting at 12:00 p.m. 
 
7) Adjournment 
 

The following motion was made: 
MOTION: by Walter Hill to adjourn the meeting at 12:20 p.m.  Second by Heidi 

Brooks. 
 VOTED: 6-0 (Passed) 
 
 


